
1 
 

                                
                           
 

 
WRIGHTWOOD 
COMMUNITY 

SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

July 2, 2019 

REGULAR 
BOARD MEETING 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

                      WRIGHTWOOD COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
                                        P.O. Box 218 Wrightwood, CA  92397   

  
                         Notice   

   
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors   

Tuesday, July 2, 2019-6:30pm   
Wrightwood Community Building   

1275 State Highway 2, Wrightwood, CA   
 

                 Agenda   
   

        6:30 PM – Call to Order   
1. Pledge of Allegiance   
2. Roll Call 
3. Agenda Approval 
4. Public Comments Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-

related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, that is sought to 
participate in the above-agenized public meeting, should be directed to the Chair at any time prior 
to the meeting. Under this item, any member of the public wishing to directly address the Board on 
any item of interest that is not within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board may do so now.  
However, the Board is prohibited by law from taking any action on any item not appearing on the 
agenda unless the action is otherwise authorized by the Brown Act.  Any member of the public 
wishing to directly address the Board on any item listed on the agenda may do so when the item is 
being considered by the Board.  Pursuant to Section 2.3.2 of Ordinance No 2019-03 adopted by the 
Board on April 2,2019, the Chair may limit each speaker to a comment period of three (3) minutes 
or less.   

5. Agency Reports 
6. Consent Calendar 
        6a. June 4,2019 Regular Board Meeting Minutes    
7. General Managers Report 
8. Park & Recreation Event Coordinator Report: Discussion and Possible Action 
9. June Financials 
10. Resolution of Appreciation for John and Allene Lenau Community Service: Discussion and 

Possible Action 
11. Review of Wrightwood Historical Society Facility Use Agreement: Discussion and 

Possible Action 
12. Variance for Wrightwood Property Owners Association Ice Cream Social: Discussion and 

Possible Action 
13. Variance for Music in the Pines: Discussion and Possible Action 
14. Solid Waste Update: Discussion and Possible Action 
15. Purchase of Security Camera System: Discussion and Possible Action 
16. Proposition 68 State Park Per Capita Program Update: Discussion and Possible Action 
17. Directors Comments 
18. Future Board Meeting: Discussion and Possible Action August 6, 2019 
19. Adjournment 

 
 
 

The Mission of the 
Wrightwood Community 

Services District is: 

To provide local 
governance in the areas of 
parks and recreation, street 
lighting, solid waste and 
recycling and waste water 
planning and engineering 
in a fiscally responsible 
manner. 

The Vision of the 
Wrightwood Community 

Services District is: 

To Empower our 
community to have local 
control by serving as a 
platform for community 
discussion, cohesion and 
action in the areas of parks 
and recreation, street 
lighting, solid waste and 
recycling and wastewater 
planning and engineering. 

To promote and grow a 
vibrant parks and 
recreation department for 
our community. 

To maintain and enhance 
our current infrastructure 

To economize our solid 
waste process and 
maximize our efficiency 
in executing them 

To protect our natural 
resources through 
evaluating community 
wastewater needs 

To meet all these ends in a 
fiscally responsible 
manner 

 



3 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

  ITEM 6A 
 

 MINUTES 
 
 REGULAR    

BOARD MEETING 
June 4, 2019 
 

     

     
   

   
 



4 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING  
June 4, 2019 

Wrightwood Community Building  
1275 State Highway 2  

Wrightwood, CA  
  
                                                                                MINUTES  
  
Board Members Present:         Wes Zuber, President  
                                                          Leo Hordyk, Vice-President 
                                                          Chuck Franklin, Member       
                Natalie Lopiccolo, Member 
                                                          Michelle Schneider, Member 
                                                  
Staff Present:                             Steven Kennedy, Attorney  

Al Morrissette, General Manager   
Tamara Keen, Secretary 

                   Monica Ciccarelli, P&R Event Coordinator 
 Call to Order  
President Zuber called the Meeting to order at 6:30 pm 
Al Morrisette conducted the Pledge of Allegiance  
  

Roll Call  
All members were present 
  

3. Approval of Agenda: President Zuber motioned to approve the agenda and Director Franklin 2nd the 
motion.  Agenda approved unanimously. 

  

4. Public Comment: Nancy Martinez mentioned that one of the home school classes hosted a painting party 
with “Purple Easel” and had a great turn out.  She suggested maybe hosting a party for the community and 
hanging their art on the community building walls. 

  

5. Agency Reports: Susan Drake from Supervisor Lovingood’s office stated that there will be a Disaster 
Preparedness Workshop for beginners at the Phelan SCD Community Bldg. on June 18, 2019.  She also 
stated that the community should educate themselves on Virulent New Castle Disease which has been 
found in CA.  It is a contagious disease of birds, including chickens.  There is no vaccine and there is no 
cure.  For more info visit the CDFA website. 

 

6. Consent Calendar:  Director Schneider moved to approve the calendar and seconded by Director 
Lopiccolo.  Calendar approved unanimously.   

 

  
7. General Manager Report:  General Manager Morrissette gave a written report of the month’s activities. 

He also informed the Board that he was moving to the Philippines after his contract was up. 
 

8. Parks and Rec Event Coordinator Report: Coordinator Ciccarelli gave an update on upcoming sporting 
events.  There are 16 adult softball teams that will play every Sunday utilizing the upper and lower baseball 
fields at Wrightwood Elementary. Adult soccer ended up with 4 teams, with games starting on June 18, 
2019 on the upper field at Wrightwood Elementary.  All soccer games will be on Tuesday nights.  The cut-
off for youth Flag Football registration will be Sunday June 9, 2019.   Monica is also working on a “Kids 
Fun Zone”, which will be located on the upper field during Mountaineer Days, July 6 & 7th.  The Home 
Run Derby, which was to be held on Mountaineer Days will be moved to August for safety reasons. 

 



5 
 

9. March, April and May:  Lori Golden asked why there was a Security Deposit charge under income and 
was this after expenses.  It was explained that if a deposit was not fully returned, due to cleaning etc., that 
it would be retained by the CSD as income.  There was no approval or action taken. 

  

10. Preview WW Historical Society Facility Use Agreement:  The Board of Directors for WW Historical 
Society has agreed to take over operations for John Lenau.  Steve Kennedy will re-write the agreement 
updating it with the CSD and new insurance requirements. 

 

11. Continuation of Public Hearing: Proposed 19/20 WCSD Annual Budget: 7:08pm to 7:15pm – resident 
Nancy Martinez spoke regarding the Parks Coordinator position, stating that she feels the position needs 
more hours.  VP Hordyk Motioned to approve the budget with Director Lopiccolo 2nd the motion. Motion 
carries 

 

12. Resolution 2019-09 Annual Apportionment: Discussion and possible action: Approved 
 

13. Resolution 2019-01 Reserve Policy: Discussion and Possible Action: Tabled until after audit. 
 

14. LAFCO Service Review:  Discussion and Possible Action: No action until after audit 
 

15. Possible Payroll and Bookkeeping Method: Discussion and Possible Action:  Cecelia Cummings 
contract was renewed on a month to month basis.  Approved by Director Lopiccolo and 2nd by Director 
Schneider. John Aziz to donate a time clock and time cards for the CSDs use. 

 

16. Prop 68 State Park Grant Resolution 2019-07 Statewide Park Development and Community 
Revitalization Program:  Discussion and Possible Action Discussion took place between the Board and 
the GM that resulted in the potential of receiving funds from this program was not that good resulting with 
no action from the Board. 

 

17. Prop 68 State Park Grant Resolution 2019-08 Per Capita Program:  Discussion and Possible Action: 
After discussion of the grant outline and the potential to receive funding was substantial, GM Morrissette 
suggest a strategy7 to break down the grant needs into two or more applications. The Board discussed with 
President Zuber making the motion to approve, Seconds by Director Schneider, Board unanimously 
approved. 

 

18. Revised General Manager Contract:  Discussion and Possible Action: The new GM contract is a month 
to month contract with 26 hours executive leave.  It is a salaried position with no OT.  There was discussion 
that after a few months to readdress the contract into a 1- or 2-year contract. The committee will publish 
advertisement for the position with the goal of June 26 to review the applications. The Board voted 
unanimously.  

 

19. Directors Comments: Director Schneider thanked the CSD staff for going above and beyond with the 
Annie show.  Director Hordyk also complimented the staff about the awesome job they did polishing the 
floors.  Director Lopiccolo wanted to compliment Monica Ciccarelli for a job well done. 

 

20. Future Board Meeting:  July 2, 2019 at 6:30pm 
 
President Zuber adjourned the meeting at 8:51pm 
 
 
Minutes approved: _________________________                                 Date____________________ 
                                         President Wes Zuber  

 



6 
 

 
                                                                                   

ITEM 7 
 

GENERAL MANAGER 
REPORT 

 
 
 
 

                        

                      
  
 
 



7 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
July 2,2019 

 
I was informed by Hong Nguyen that the District Audit by Eadie and Payne for the Fiscal Year of 2017/18 
should be completed shortly and that they are working directly with the State. She also informed me that they 
are nearing completion of the 2019/2020 Audit, forecasted to be completed by July 31,2019. Cheryl Van 
Veluwen from E&P accounting department came out for half a day on June 20 performing some final in-house 
work, we assisted Cheryl by providing answers to specific questions and copies of back up material. During this 
process, we discovered that some payroll procedures needed to be adjusted to be in compliance with current 
State labor Code and we have made those adjustments. 
 
On June 10, CR&R Manager Brent Spears met with me to discuss our Districts Mandatory Commercial Trash 
pick-up and the implementation of our Commercial Recycling Program. CR&R will handle the infrastructure 
directly, similar to the procedures implemented elsewhere. The deadline to meet is for our Solid Waste reports 
to the County was met, primarily due to being able to utilize last year’s format. This is because C&R and the 
other waste haulers have been able to persuade the State to temporarily suspended the new requirements while 
they collectively negotiate the requirements standards and timelines. We still will need to provide our 
information to Cal Recycle in August. 
 
The 2019/2020 Dump Cards were issued on Saturday, June 22. We had 1477 cards issued directly to the 
Wrightwood PO Boxes, while 1075 sent out of the area. In addition, another 175 cards were kept in the office 
due to no viable mailing address verified. We have had a significant increase of calls, emails and personal visits 
to the office from card holders voicing concerns of delays that would distribute the cards pass the July 1 
timeline. Some holders were understanding, while others voiced their irritation toward Tamie and me. If the 
cards would have been printed as expected by the last week in May/first week in June, the chances of having a 
more professional proactive profile would have help to promote the purpose of establishing local government. 
 
The holdup was from the data base, which needed to be adjusted for the upcoming year and several 
appointments for that modification not met. We finally were able to have usable data on Thursday, June 13 
around 1pm. We benefited in May, through volunteers who assisted in the pre-folding and stuffing of the letters 
in the envelopes. Also, in May, we preprinted all the backs of the cards, thus we commenced printing the fronts 
on Friday June 14.  
 
In the final days of dump card mania, other volunteers, who dedicated their time to help with verifying and 
placing the cards in the appropriate envelopes, plus seal and apply postage. Tamie and I printed the cards, 
proofed them, also performed the duties that the volunteers unable to finish. Plus, we indexed each card in 
numerical PO Box order for Wrightwood residences as required by the post office regulation.  
 
We thank the Wrightwood Property Owners for allowing us to utilize their bulk mail stamp for the local 
mailings, which saved the district about $300 from the normal postage.  I personally want to thank my staff: Jon 
for doing all the facility custodial and maintenance work besides his normal duties and Tamie for being a strong 
right arm through this process. Due to the data issue; overtime, unnecessary stress, inner office tension and 
community wide negative WCSD feelings are the rewards for our efforts.  
 
The glitch in the data was band aid to overcome inability to perform batch printing, yet that band aid 
disconnected the ability to create individual card. After all the batch work was finished, the data technicians had 
to once again band aid the system to permit individual printing. This was performed on June 26, but we 
apologize to four card holders who wanted 2018/19 cards because that data no longer exists. We need a failsafe 
for our dump card system because if the time comes that we exceed the July 1 due date that could create 
significant fiscal impact to the district as well as expanding a ‘worst then the County mindset’. 



8 
 

 
I want to thank members of the Veteran’s Memorial Club for donating a new LED light for the Veterans 
Monument flag pole and paying for the installation of the replacement lighting. During their volunteer help of 
the monument’s preparation for the Memorial Day honorarium, I met with them at the site and discussed how 
when the monument was created, the Evergreen St. storm water gutter had a low spot that diverts the flow into 
the monument’s pathway. Though Special Districts was aware of this in 2009, they never resolved it and when 
the WCSD was formed, we inherited it within the ‘As Is’ portion of the transformation agreement. The water 
travels northward within the crushed granite walkway directly into the men’s side of the outdoor park restroom 
and continues into the parking lot. To resolve this, we will raise the entrance of the site slightly, a system of 
memorial bricks that include the names of veterans will be laid on the memorial side of the entrances in a 
formation that is esthetically pleasing by the Veteran’s Club, and we will backfill a short section of the crushed 
granite. This should keep the storm water within the gutter as it was designed to do. 
 
Tamie will be taking a well-deserved one-week vacation to visit her mother in Idaho from Tuesday July 9 to 
Wednesday, July 17.  
 
This month I have made many purchases, please do not be alarmed, the goal is to take care of some 
housekeeping and other items to make the transformation from one manager to the next easier. No doubt the 
new manager will come in with a learning curve need and focus of how their responsibilities interrelate to one 
another, what those responsibilities truly are, how to interrelate to the staff, attorney, bookkeeper, auditor, 
community and Board through understanding what each role is and protecting their own boundaries from 
micro-management from several directions. I believe to help staff and the new general manager a series of 
operation booklets should be created enabling everyone involved to maintain a harmonic understanding of the 
procedures and methodology behind all the jobs involved. 
 
The conclusion of this fiscal year and the start of the next is always an interesting transition. Last year we 
performed the transition with a bank balance around $185,000 and this year we enter the new year with a 
balance of $261,000, a significant $76,000 cushion. Yet keep in mind that with the exception of some small tax 
transfers, facility fee payments, franchise fee payments and a few other things, these fund will need to take the 
District through to the beginning of December, thus my forethought of supply stock and resolving some other 
issues will hopefully be an asset through these next six months. 
 
 
 
 
Thank you, 
Al Morrissette 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 
 

 
 

 
ITEM 8 

 
 

PARKS AND RECREATION  
EVENT COORDINATOR 

 
REPORT 

 
 
 

 
  
  

                                                                                 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 



10 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

At this time no written report was submitted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 
 

 

 

ITEM 9 
 

FINANCIALS 
 

JUNE 2019 
                  

 
 
 

 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
The July 2 Board meeting does not give our bookkeeper proper time to perform the month and year end 
actuals. I anticipate to distribute those at the meeting. The disbursements also are not complete and I should 
have to at the meeting as well. I did include the disbursements up to June 29. 
 
Thank You 
Al Morrissette 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 
 

 
 
 



14 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15 
 

 

 

ITEM 10 
 

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION 
FOR 

JOHN AND ALLENE LENAU 
 

DISCUSSION 
AND 

 POSSIBLE ACTION 
 
 

 
 
 
 



16 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION IS STILL BEING CRAFTED AND WILL BE AVAILABLE AT THE 
MEETING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



17 
 

 

ITEM 11 
 
 

REVIEW OF  
WRIGHRTWOOD HISTORICAL 

SOCIETY  
FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 

 
DISCUSSION  

AND 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 



18 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
The Wrightwood Historical Society has been serving the Tri-Community as its sole preservation museum of 
local artifacts and historical information for several decades. We inherited the agreement dated July 18, 2000 as 
part of our formation. I brought it forward last month so that the Board can be familiar with the document and 
review to see if the Board would keep it in its current state or modify in some way. The Board directed Mr. 
Kennedy to transform it to a WCSD document and in the process, Mr. Kennedy reviewed asked me some 
question and I also reviewed and commented. At this point, we bring the document back to the Board with both 
of our comments enabling the Board to review and give direction. I was asked last month if the Historic Society 
could be under our insurance policy. I asked SDRMA and the response was, no. This is because to include in 
our policy the organization would have to be a part of the District and not a renter. 
 
Thank You 
Al Morrissette 

 
 



19 
 

 
 



20 
 

 



21 
 

 



22 
 

 



23 
 

 
 



24 
 

 
 



25 
 

 
   
 

 



26 
 

 

   ITEM 12 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST 
FOR 

WRIGHTWOOD PROPERTY OWNERS 
ICE CREAM SOCIAL 

 
DISCUSSION 

 AND  
POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

                                                                               

  

 



27 
 

STAFF REPORT 

Each year the Wrightwood Property Owners Association hold an Ice Cram Social that includes 
entertainment, Ice Cream and a forum of friendly members looking to bring into their organization 
property owners who have resisted them in the past and new property owners who need fellowship. 

Staff recommends the variance since they are active monthly renters and they graciously allowed the 
WCSD to utilize their bulk mail stamp enabling us to save several hundreds of dollars in dump card 
postage. 

 

Thank you 

Al Morrissette 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



28 
 

 

 

 

 



29 
 

 

 
 
 

ITEM 13 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST 
FOR 

WRIGHTWOOD 
MUSIC IN THE PINES 

 
DISCUSSION 

AND 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

 



30 
 

STAFF REPORT 

 

The Wrightwood Music in the Pines is celebrating their 15th year of providing free Summer 
Concerts to the community. They performed these concerts initially in the Vivian Null Park. 
They left the park for a few years exploring a broader venue location, but have come back to 
the Vivian Null Park format in an effort to make access to the community easier, help local 
business and reunite with this parks acoustics. 

We have helped by providing two banners and 10 flyers.  

Staff recommends approval of this variance because this program fits well with the purpose 
of Parks and Recreation Department without adding any staff time. This approval would 
retro back to the first concert last week on June 27, where approximately 500 visitors were 
in attendance. The other dates are July 11, July 25 and August 8. 

Thank You 

Al Morrissette 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



31 
 

REQUEST FOR FACILITY RATE VARIANCE 
The District is prohibited by Article XVI. Section 6, of the California Constitution from making any gift, 
or authorize the making of any gift, of any public money or thing of value to any individual, municipal or 
other corporation whatever…” As a result, any reduction in the District’s standard facility usage rates that 
may be granted must not constitute an unconditional gift of public funds.  At a minimum, this means that 
any request for such cost variance should be tied to a valid public purpose that benefits the District. 
Specifically, eligibility for a facility rate variance is limited to only those applicants that are engaging in 
uses related to the particular public duties and functions that the District is empowered to perform within 
its jurisdictional boundaries pursuant to Government Code Section 61000 et seq. as expressly authorized 
by the San Bernardino County Local Agency Formation Commission. Therefore, please describe in the 
“Explanation” section below the following: (1) the nexus between the cost reduction requested from the 
District and the corresponding benefit that would be received by the Public and (2) how such benefit falls 
within the scope of the District’s authorized public purpose – i.e., Street lighting, park and recreation, solid 
waste and recycling, and wastewater. Please feel free to attach and supporting material’s that you believe 
would be relevant. 
Though not required, you may want to attend the Board meeting to answer questions. 
 

         ORGANIZATION: _Wrightwood Music in the Pine___________________ 
CONTACT: ____Claudia Campbell_________________________________ 
ADDRESS: ___________________________________________________ 
CONTACT PHONE NUMBER: ____________________________________ 
CONTACT EMAIL: _____________________________________________ 

 
VARIANCE REQUEST 

AMOUNT TO BE CONSIDERED: __$216.00__________________________ 
DATE/DATES TO BE CONSIDERED: _June 27, July 11, July 25, August 8___ 

EXPLANATION: We are in our 15th year providing a Summer Concert Series of a 
variety of music to the Wrightwood Community. In the past the County never charged us 
for the use of the park or parking lot. We ask the Wrightwood Community Services 
District to provide the same courtesy and not charge us for our time. This series is a 
good way for you to promote yourselves to the community through helping us provide 
these concerts for the young and young at heart. This program is what Al referred Dan 
and me as a collaborative joint venture that benefits the District and the community. We 
would love to continue bringing our concerts to the community through your parks. 

 

 

 

 

 



32 
 

 
 

  

   ITEM 14 
 

  SOLID WASTE UPDATE 
 

DISCUSSION  
AND 

POSSIBLE ACTION  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



33 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

CR&C District Manager, Brent Spears met with me om June 10. We discussed our new 
Commercial Mandatory Pick Up and Recycling Program and he explained that they are 
doing similar programs elsewhere and will adapt those models into the management of 
our program. He also gave me an update of current service and a slight rate increase. 
 
Thank you 
Al Morrissette 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



34 
 

 

 



35 
 

 



36 
 

 



37 
 

 



38 
 

 



39 
 

 

   
   ITEM 15 

 

   PURCHASE OF SECURITY 
CAMERA SYSTEM 

 
DISCUSSION 

AND 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

 
 
 
 



40 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Since the district came into existence, the security camera system we inherited has not full functioned. The 
system is old and consist of four cameras: 1 Community Building front porch, 2. Looking at the entrance of the 
outside restrooms, 3. Looking at the entrance of the Service Shed and 4. At the skate park. At first it was the 
skate park camera that was the only one not functioning. Then some on and off service from the others. 
 
On several occasions UIA performed a complete analysis of the system and made adjustments to the existing 
system that helped to stabilize the feed, yet the skate park never regain service.  
 
On several occasion I was told that the skate park camera would be further be inspected. Finally, last October I 
was informed that the skate park system would need to be replaces. I was hopeful that we could make it through 
winter without much incident at the skate park and prior to a few situations prior to October we had little 
incidences. 
 
This last February the entire system went down and I had our security company Turner Security look at it. He 
confirmed what we previously were told and suggested that we look into a new system. 
 
I got a quote from Turner security for a 7-camera system that would cover the front and sides of the Community 
Building, the outside restroom, the service shed, the Veteran’s Monument and the Skate Park. The monitoring 
and system would remain in the Community Building and can easily be expanded at any time. 
 
We have been told by UIA last April, that they could install a similar system for a similar cost but the 
monitoring would be at their facility across the street. The Board said ok and unfortunately nothing has come of 
it. 
 
Since April we have had a significant increase in graffiti at the skate park, the park restrooms and the 
community building. At the Veteran’s Memorial there has been not just graffiti happening but also damage by 
knife on 6 trees, plus we have had to replant two trees and we lost one due to the trees being pulled down or 
pulled out of the ground. 
 
I request that the Board go forward with the Turner proposal so that in a short time we will have a functioning 
system that will show us who these perpetrators are and we can turn the information over to the Sheriff 
Department. Their quote still is good. 
 
Thank you 
Al Morrissette 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



41 
 

 



 
 
 
 

   
ITEM 16 

PROP 68 STATE PARK GRANT 
RESOLUTION  

PER CAPITA GRANT 
DISCUSSION 

AND 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



43  
  
 

 

 



44  
  
 

 

 



45  
  
 

 



46  
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The resolution will be ready at the Board meeting 



47  
  
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

   
ITEM 17 

 
 

   DIRECTORS 
  COMMENTS 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



48  
  
 

 

 
ITEM 18 

FUTURE BOARD  
MEETING 

AUGUST 6, 2019 
 

DISCUSSION  
AND 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

 
 
 
 



49  
  
 

                                                                                                                                                          

   
 

ITEM 19 
 
 

ADJURNMENT 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 


